
City Council Meeting Agenda 
August 24, 2021 

Page 1 of 2 

City of Belton, Texas 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, August 24, 2021 - 5:30 p.m. 

Wright Room at the Harris Community Center 
401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

Mayor Pro Tem David K. Leigh will participate in the meeting 
via videoconference from Las Vegas, Nevada. 

Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Guy O’Banion. 

Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Public 
Information Officer Paul Romer. 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Councilmember Dan Kirkley. 

1. Call to order.

2. Public Comments.

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your
name and address for the record and limit your comments to three minutes.
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1)
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda.

Consent Agenda 

Items 3-6 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
August 24, 2021 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
3. Consider minutes of August 10, 2021, City Council Meeting. 
 
4. Consider reinstatement of a Local Disaster Declaration for Public Health Emergency 

related to the COVID-19 Pandemic in Belton, Texas. 
 
5. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute Change Order No. 2 for the 2021 

Street Overlay Project to add additional streets and scope of work to the project. 
 

6. Consider reappointments to the following Commissions: 
 

A. Civil Service Commission 
B. Historic Preservation Commission 

 
Regular Agenda 
 
7. Consider appointments to the Youth Advisory Commission, administer oath of office 

to newly appointed members, and appoint a Chair. 
 
Planning and Zoning 
 
8. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural (AG) to Single 

Family-3 (SF-3) on approximately 12.035 acres located along an extension of Laila 
Lane, west of Connell Street, east of South Loop 121, south of West Avenue O, and 
north of Huey Drive. 

 
9. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural (AG) to Single 

Family-3 (SF-3) on approximately 55.997 acres located east of IH 35, north of loop 
121, and south of Avenue R. 

 
10. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural (AG) to Single 

Family-3 (SF-3), Retail (R), Commercial-1 (C-1) and Commercial-2 (C-2) on 
approximately 53.04 acres located south of IH-14, west of S. Loop 121 and east of 
Old Golf Course Road. 

 
 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 
 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
August 24, 2021 

Page 1 of 3 
 
 

 
City of Belton, Texas 

 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, August 24, 2021 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room at the Harris Community Center 

401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 
 

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 
 

Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Guy O’Banion. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Public 
Information Officer Paul Romer. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Councilmember Dan Kirkley. 
 
1. Call to order. 
 
2. Public Comments. 

 
Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do 
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the 
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your 
name and address for the record and limit your comments to three minutes. 
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your 
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1) 
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual 
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than 
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda. 
 

Consent Agenda 
 
Items 3-6 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
3. Consider minutes of August 10, 2021, City Council Meeting. 
 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
August 24, 2021 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 

A copy of the minutes is attached. Recommend approval. 
 

4. Consider reinstatement of a Local Disaster Declaration for Public Health 
Emergency related to the COVID-19 Pandemic in Belton, Texas. 

 
See Staff Report from City Manager Sam Listi. Recommend reinstatement of Local 
Disaster Declaration as presented. 

 
5. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute Change Order No. 2 for the 

2021 Street Overlay Project to add additional streets and scope of work to the 
project. 

 
See Staff Report from Interim Director of Public Works Matt Bates. Recommend 
approval of the change order adding additional street work and scope to the project. 

 
6. Consider reappointments to the following Commissions: 
 

A. Civil Service Commission – Jerry Samu 
B. Historic Preservation Commission – Barrett Covington and Ann Carpenter 

 
See Staff Report from City Clerk Amy Casey. Recommend reappointments as 
presented. 

 
Regular Agenda 
 
7. Consider appointments to the Youth Advisory Commission, administer oath of 

office to newly appointed members, and appoint a Chair. 
 

See Staff Report from Interim Director of Parks and Recreation James Grant. City 
Attorney John Messer will administer the Oath of Office. 

 
Planning and Zoning 
 
8. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural (AG) to 

Single Family-3 (SF-3) on approximately 12.035 acres located along an 
extension of Laila Lane, west of Connell Street, east of South Loop 121, south 
of West Avenue O, and north of Huey Drive. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Planning Bob van Til. At its meeting on August 17, 
2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended approval of 
this zoning change, and Staff concurs. 

 
9. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural (AG) to 

Single Family-3 (SF-3) on approximately 55.997 acres located east of IH 35, 
north of loop 121, and south of Avenue R. 

 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
August 24, 2021 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 

See Staff Report from Director of Planning Bob van Til. At its meeting on August 17, 
2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended approval of 
this zoning change, and Staff concurs. 

 
10. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural (AG) to 

Single Family-3 (SF-3), Retail (R), Commercial-1 (C-1) and Commercial-2 (C-2) 
on approximately 53.04 acres located south of IH-14, west of S. Loop 121 and 
east of Old Golf Course Road. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Planning Bob van Til. At its meeting on August 17, 
2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended approval of 
this zoning change, and Staff concurs. Legal description for each tract will be 
attached to the adopted ordinance. 

 



Belton City Council Meeting 
August 10, 2021 – 5:30 P.M. 

 
The Belton City Council met in regular session in the Wright Room of the Harris Community 
Center. Members present included Mayor Wayne Carpenter, Mayor Pro Tem David K. Leigh, 
and Councilmembers Craig Pearson, Dan Kirkley, Guy O’Banion, John R. Holmes, Sr. and 
Daniel Bucher. Staff present included Sam Listi, Gene Ellis, John Messer, Amy Casey, Jon 
Fontenot, Chris Brown, Mike Rodgers, Scott Hodde, James Grant, Kim Kroll, Bob van Til and 
Judy Garrett.  
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag was led by Councilmember Craig Pearson, and the 
pledge to the Texas Flag was led by Assistant City Manager/Chief of Police Gene Ellis. The 
Invocation was given by Mayor Wayne Carpenter. 
 
 
1. Call to order. Mayor Carpenter called the meeting to order at 5:31 p.m. Mayor Carpenter 

thanked City staff who helped with the Back to School event in Yettie Polk Park over the 
weekend. 

 
2. Public Comments. (Audio 2:25)  
 

Troy Finley spoke regarding a problem he has with construction inspections and permits 
for 702 S. Pearl. 
 

Consent Agenda 
 
Items 3-5 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may be 
enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be removed 
from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any Councilmember, and it will be 
considered separately. (Audio 7:04) 
 
3. Consider minutes of July 27, 2021, City Council Meeting. 
 
4. Consider a Façade Improvement Grant (FIG) Application to renovate the property at 

206 E. Central Ave, located in the Downtown Belton Commercial Historic District, 
on the north side of East Central Ave, west of North Penelope Street and east of 
North East Street. 

 
5. Consider a request to abandon a portion of a storm water easement at 804 

Damascus Drive and authorizing the City Manager to execute an Encroachment 
Indemnity Agreement. 

 
Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Leigh, and a second by Councilmember O’Banion, the 
Consent Agenda was unanimously approved upon a vote of 7-0. 
 
 
 
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
August 10, 2021 – Page 2  

 

  

Regular Agenda 
 
6. Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the creation of a Regional Emergency 

Communications District, as proposed by the Board of Directors of the Central 
Texas Council of Governments. (Audio 8:00) 

 
City Manager Sam Listi presented this item. Jesse Hennage from the Central Texas Council 
of Governments provided additional information about the creation of the Regional 
Emergency Communications District. 
 
Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Leigh, and a second by Councilmember Pearson, the 
following captioned resolution was unanimously approved by a vote of 7-0. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021–22–R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF THE CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL 9-1-1 
EMERGENCY COMMUNICATOINS DISTRICT. 
 
FY2022 Budget 
 
7. Receive a presentation on the FY2022-FY2026 Strategic Plan and invite public input 

on September 7, 2021. (Audio 16:45) 
 
City Manager Sam Listi gave a presentation on the goals and objectives of the proposed 
FY2022-FY2026 Strategic Plan. Mr. Listi stated the Strategic Plan will be considered for 
adoption at the September 14, 2021, City Council meeting in conjunction with budget 
adoption, and he recommended the Council receive public input at the Special Called City 
Council meeting on September 7, 2021. 
 

8. Receive a presentation on the FY2022 Proposed Annual Budget for the City of 
Belton. (Audio 24:35) 

 
Director of Finance Mike Rodgers presented an overview of the proposed FY2022 
Budget. No action is required of the Council at this time. Budget adoption is scheduled for 
the City Council meeting on September 14, 2021, at 5:30 p.m., at the Harris Community 
Center. 

 
9. Call for a public hearing to be held at a Special Called City Council Meeting on 

Tuesday, September 7, 2021, at 5:30 p.m., at the Harris Community Center, 401 N. 
Alexander, for the City of Belton Budget for Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2021 
and ending September 30, 2022. (Audio 54:36) 

 
Councilmember Kirkley made a motion for a public hearing to be held on the proposed 
FY2022 budget at the Special Called City Council meeting on Tuesday, September 7, 
2021, at 5:30 p.m. Councilmember Pearson seconded the motion which was unanimously 
approved upon a vote of 7-0. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
August 10, 2021 – Page 3 

10. Discuss and consider a proposed ad valorem tax rate for the 2021 tax year (FY
2022). (Audio 55:12)

Director of Finance Mike Rodgers presented this item. Tax rate adoption is scheduled for
the City Council meeting on September 14, 2021, at 5:30 p.m., at the Harris Community
Center.

Mayor Pro Tem Leigh made a motion to set the maximum tax rate at $0.63. The motion
was seconded by Councilmember Kirkley. A roll call vote was taken:

City Council For Against 
Present 
and Not  
Voting 

Absent 

Mayor Wayne Carpenter X 

Mayor Pro Tem David K. Leigh X 

Councilmember Craig Pearson X 

Councilmember Dan Kirkley X 

Councilmember Guy O’Banion X 

Councilmember John R. Holmes, Sr. X 

Councilmember Daniel Bucher X 

11. Call for a public hearing to be held at a Special Called City Council Meeting on
Tuesday, September 7, 2021, at 5:30 p.m., at the Harris Community Center, 401 N.
Alexander, for the proposed tax rate for the 2021 tax year (FY 2022). (Audio 1:48:56)

Councilmember Pearson made a motion for a public hearing to be held on the proposed
tax rate for the 2021 tax year (FY2022) at the Special Called City Council meeting on
Tuesday, September 7, 2021, at 5:30 p.m. Councilmember Bucher seconded the motion
which was unanimously approved upon a vote of 7-0.

There being no further business, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 7:19 p.m. 

_____________________________ 
Wayne Carpenter, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



City Council Agenda Item 
March 24, 2020 

Page 1 of 1   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 

 
Agenda Item #4 
 
Consider reinstatement of a Local Disaster Declaration for Public Health Emergency related 
to the COVID-19 Pandemic in Belton, Texas. 
 
Originating Departments 
 
Administration – Sam A. Listi, City Manager 
 
Summary Information 
 
Following Bell County Judge Blackburn’s reinstatement of Bell County’s Local Disaster 
Declaration related to the COVID-19 pandemic, Staff is recommending following suit to 
ensure the potential for us to recover funds expended by the City in this continued 
emergency through Bell County, the State of Texas or Federal resources. Such a 
Declaration may be required for proper submittal of requests for reimbursements. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
Unknown - To Be Determined 
 
Recommendation 
 

Recommend approval of reinstatement of the Local Disaster Declaration for Public Health 
Emergency in Belton, Texas. 
 
Attachments 
Bell County Judge Blackburn’s Bell County Disaster Declaration dated August 13, 2021 
Disaster Declaration for Public Health Emergency in Belton, Texas 
 



 

 
 

COUNTY OF BELL, TEXAS 
COUNTY JUDGE DECLARATION 

 OF  
LOCAL STATE OF DISASTER 

DUE TO PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY 
 

 WHEREAS, a novel coronavirus, now designated SARS-CoV2 which causes the disease COVID-
19, has been declared a global pandemic by the World Health Organization; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the symptoms of COVID-19 can range from mild to severe illness and cause further 
complications including death; and  
 
 WHEREAS, COVID-19 virus mainly spreads between people who are in close contact with one 
another through respiratory droplets produced when an infected person coughs or sneezes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Delta variant of COVID-19 has emerged and is spreading at an extraordinary 
rate, with the current threat level in Bell County listed as ‘uncontrolled community transmission; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the Governor of the State of Texas issued a proclamation 
certifying that COVID-19 poses an imminent threat of disaster in the state and declaring a state of disaster 
for all counties in Texas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 18, 2020, the Bell County Judge issued a local disaster declaration 
enacting the provisions of Chapter 418 of the Texas Government Code providing for a local state of 
disaster due to a public health emergency; and  
 
 WHEREAS,  the Bell County Judge’s local disaster declaration was extended indefinitely, or 
until the Bell County Judge terminates such declaration, by the Bell County Commissioners Court, 
pursuant to Chapter 418 of the Texas Government Code on March 23, 2020; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Bell County Judge terminated the local disaster declaration dated March 18, 2020 
on June 1, 2021 based upon representations from the Federal Emergency Management Agency and the 
Texas Department of Emergency Management that the Governor’s state-wide disaster declaration was 
sufficient for seeking federal and state aid associated with the pandemic; and  
 

WHEREAS, there is currently some uncertainty as to whether the Governor’s state-wide disaster 
declaration is sufficient for seeking federal and/or state aid associated with the pandemic;  
 
 WHEREAS, Bell County, Texas, has, and is continuing, to take extraordinary measures to prevent 
the spread of this potentially devastating disease in our community; and  
 



 WHEREAS, said state of disaster requires that certain emergency protective measures be taken 
pursuant to the Texas Disaster Act of 1975 relating to Emergency Management and Public Health, 
pursuant to Chapter 418 of the Texas Government Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED BY THE COUNTY JUDGE OF BELL COUNTY, 
TEXAS: 
 
 SECTION 1. That a local state of disaster for public health emergency is hereby declared for Bell 
County, Texas, pursuant to Section 418.108(a) of the Texas Government Code. 
 
 SECTION 2. That pursuant to Section 418.108(b) of the Texas Government Code the state of 
disaster for public health emergency shall continue for a period of not more than seven (7) days from the 
date of this declaration, unless approved by the Commissioners Court of Bell County, Texas. 
 
 SECTION 3. That pursuant to Section 418.108(c) of the Texas Government Code this declaration 
of a local state of disaster for public health emergency shall be given prompt and general publicity and 
shall be filed promptly with the County Clerk. 
 
 SECTION 4.  That pursuant to Section 418.108(d) of the Texas Government Code, this 
declaration of a local state of disaster activates the Bell County, Texas, emergency management plan, 
and authorizes the furnishing of aid and assistance under the declaration. 
 
 SECTION 5. That this declaration authorizes the County to take any and all actions necessary 
to promote health and suppress the virus that may be consistent with the authority granted to it by state 
law.  
 
 SECTION 7.  In accordance with Texas Government Code §418.173, a person who knowingly 
or intentionally violates any directive legally authorized and issued by this declaration commits an offense, 
punishable by a fine up to $1,000.00 or confinement in jail for a term that does not exceed 180 days. 
 
 SECTION 8. That this declaration hereby authorizes the use of all lawfully available enforcement 
tools. 
 
 SECTION 9.  That this declaration shall take effect as of June 1, 2021 and, upon approval by the 
Commissioners Court, shall continue in effect until terminated by the County Judge.  Pursuant to this 
declaration, additional directives may be issued by the County Judge at any time as deemed necessary 
to protect the public health and general welfare of the residents of the Bell County.  
 
DECLARED this    day of August, 2021. 
 
 
 
             
      D. Blackburn, County Judge 

Bell County, Texas 
 
Attest: 
 
_______________________ 
Shelley Coston, County Clerk  



 

 
 

CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS 
CITY COUNCIL DECLARATION 

 OF  
LOCAL STATE OF DISASTER 

DUE TO PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY 
 

 WHEREAS, a novel coronavirus, now designated SARS-CoV2 which causes the disease COVID-
19, has been declared a global pandemic by the World Health Organization; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the symptoms of COVID-19 can range from mild to severe illness and cause further 
complications including death; and  
 
 WHEREAS, COVID-19 virus mainly spreads between people who are in close contact with one 
another through respiratory droplets produced when an infected person coughs or sneezes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Delta variant of COVID-19 has emerged and is spreading at an extraordinary 
rate, with the current threat level in City of Belton, Texas, listed as ‘uncontrolled community transmission; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the Governor of the State of Texas issued a proclamation 
certifying that COVID-19 poses an imminent threat of disaster in the state and declaring a state of disaster 
for all counties in Texas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 24, 2020, the City Council of Belton, Texas, issued a local disaster 
declaration enacting the provisions of Chapter 418 of the Texas Government Code providing for a local 
state of disaster due to a public health emergency; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council’s local disaster declaration was extended indefinitely, or until the 
City Council terminated such declaration, by the City of Belton, Texas, City Council action pursuant to 
Chapter 418 of the Texas Government Code on March 23, 2020; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Belton City Council allowed the local disaster declaration dated March 24, 2020 
based to expire based upon representations from the Federal Emergency Management Agency and the 
Texas Department of Emergency Management that the Governor’s state-wide disaster declaration was 
sufficient for seeking federal and state aid associated with the pandemic; and  
 

WHEREAS, there is currently some uncertainty as to whether the Governor’s state-wide disaster 
declaration is sufficient for seeking federal and/or state aid associated with the pandemic;  
 
 WHEREAS, City of Belton, Texas, has, and is continuing, to take extraordinary measures to 
prevent the spread of this potentially devastating disease in our community; and  
 



 WHEREAS, said state of disaster requires that certain emergency protective measures be taken 
pursuant to the Texas Disaster Act of 1975 relating to Emergency Management and Public Health, 
pursuant to Chapter 418 of the Texas Government Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, 
TEXAS: 
 
 SECTION 1. That a local state of disaster for public health emergency is hereby declared for the 
City of Belton, Texas, pursuant to Section 418.108(a) of the Texas Government Code. 
 
 SECTION 2. That pursuant to Section 418.108(b) of the Texas Government Code the state of 
disaster for public health emergency shall continue indefinitely following approval by the City Council of 
the City of Belton, Texas, or until such time as the declaration is terminated by the City Council of the 
City of Belton, Texas. 
 
 SECTION 3. That pursuant to Section 418.108(c) of the Texas Government Code this declaration 
of a local state of disaster for public health emergency shall be given prompt and general publicity and 
shall be filed promptly with the City Clerk. 
 
 SECTION 4. That pursuant to Section 418.108(d) of the Texas Government Code, this declaration 
of a local state of disaster activates the City of Belton, Texas, emergency management plan, and 
authorizes the furnishing of aid and assistance under the declaration. 
 
 SECTION 5. That this declaration authorizes the City to take any and all actions necessary to 
promote health and suppress the virus that may be consistent with the authority granted to it by state law.  
 
 SECTION 6. In accordance with Texas Government Code §418.173, a person who knowingly or 
intentionally violates any directive legally authorized and issued by this declaration commits an offense, 
punishable by a fine up to $1,000 or confinement in jail for a term that does not exceed 180 days. 
 
 SECTION 7. That this declaration hereby authorizes the use of all lawfully available enforcement 
tools. 
 
 SECTION 8. That this declaration shall take effect as of August 24, 2021, and, upon approval by 
the Belton City Council, shall continue in effect until terminated by the Belton City Council.  Pursuant to 
this declaration, additional directives may be issued by the Mayor or City Council at any time as deemed 
necessary to protect the public health and general welfare of the residents of the City of Belton, Texas.  
 
DECLARED this    day of August, 2021. 
 
 
 
             
      Wayne Carpenter, Mayor 

City of Belton, Texas 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk  



From: Paul Romer
To: Paul Romer
Subject: FW: Administrative Issues Lead Judge Blackburn to ‘Re-Declare’ COVID-19 Disaster
Date: Friday, August 13, 2021 4:16:43 PM
Attachments: image006.png

FYI
 
Sent to:
Department Heads
City Council
 

From: James M. Stafford <James.Stafford@bellcounty.texas.gov> 
Sent: Friday, August 13, 2021 4:04 PM
Subject: Administrative Issues Lead Judge Blackburn to ‘Re-Declare’ COVID-19 Disaster
 

 
BELL COUNTY

PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICER
 

James Stafford
 

101 East Central Ave   w Belton, TX 76513   w Office (254) 933-6724   w Cell (254) 346-5001
 
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
 
August 13, 2021
 
 
 

Administrative Issues Lead Judge Blackburn to ‘Re-Declare’ COVID-19 Disaster
 
Belton, TX – On Friday, August 13, Bell County Judge David Blackburn announced that he had
reissued a local disaster declaration regarding the COVID-19 pandemic. This declaration, which
effectively reinstates the local disaster declaration that he had issued back in March of 2020 and
revoked on June 1st of this year. 

Judge Blackburn first issued the 2020 Local Disaster Declaration on March 18, 2020, following
Governor Greg Abbott’s proclamation for the State of Texas. The local declaration was extended
indefinitely by a unanimous vote of the Bell County Commissioners Court.

In June, Judge Blackburn terminated the declaration based on communications from the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and the Texas Department of Emergency Management
(TDEM) that the Governor’s state-wide disaster declaration was sufficient for seeking federal and state
aid associated with the pandemic.

The decision to make a new declaration comes after recent conversations on the issue left some

mailto:PRomer@BeltonTexas.Gov
mailto:PRomer@BeltonTexas.Gov



uncertainty as to whether a local declaration does, in fact, need to be in place in order to continue to
seek federal and state funding for pandemic-related eligible expenses.

“The choice to once again declare a local disaster is based entirely on better insuring that Bell County,
and city governments within Bell County, may all benefit from resources and reimbursements that
would only be available to entities with active disaster declarations,” Judge Blackburn said. “It is
simply an administrative measure.”

The new declaration will be discussed during Monday’s meeting of the Bell County Commissioners
Court. Under state law, the County Judge may issue disaster declarations, but they are subject to
Commissioners Court review and approval.  The Commissioners Court will be asked to approve the
declaration.

###

 
 
 
Sincerely,
James Stafford
Public Information Officer
James.Stafford@bellcounty.texas.gov
254-346-5001 Cell
254-933-6724 Office
 

 
WARNING: This message is from an EXTERNAL email source. DO NOT open attachments or click links from unknown
senders or unexpected email. Contact Belton IT support for assistance if necessary.

 

mailto:James.Stafford@bellcounty.texas.gov


City Council Agenda Item 
August 24, 2021 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 

Agenda Item #5 
 

Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute Change Order No. 2 for the 2021 Street 
Overlay Project to add additional streets and scope of work to the project. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Public Works – Matt Bates, Interim Director of Public Works 
 
Background 
 
On April 27, 2021, Council authorized the award of the construction contract with Texas 
Materials Group, of Cedar Park, Texas, for the 2021 Street Overlay Project in the amount of 
$586,230. The bid from Texas Materials came in at an excellent price of $163,770 under the 
available total funding of $750,000.  
 
Contract law states up to 25% of the bid can be added by change order. 25% of $586,230 is 
$146,557.50.  
 

• Change Order No. 1 was approved on June 22, 2021, for a total of $77,112.45 (13% 
of available change order). This left a remaining balance for future change orders of 
around: $69,000. 

 
Proposed Change Order No. 2: 
 

1. S. Estate Drive. 
a. Includes 2” Full Mill & 2” Type D Overlay for its entire length. 
b. Thermoplastic Striping from the intersection of Estate Dr & S. Estate Dr to N. 

Beal St. **This item has been requested by residents in the area to help lower 
speeds along the narrow and winding portion of S. Estate Dr. Staff concur that 
this is needed. ** 

 
S. Estate Drive was scheduled to be included as part of the FY’22 Street Overlay Plan and 
was the largest street by quantity proposed. Completing this within FY’21 will create more 
flexibility and opportunity for additional streets to be included in FY’22. 
 
No additional time is proposed to be added to the contract.  



City Council Agenda Item 
August 24, 2021 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Fiscal Impact 
 
The total cost of Change Order No. 2 is $56,956.25. This keeps us under the total 25% 
Change Order threshold.  
 
All prices for this additional work are consistent with the base bid, and any new items have 
been negotiated with the contractor. 
 
Budgeted:   Yes     No  

 
Recommendation 
 
Authorize the City Manager to execute Change Order No. 2 for the 2021 Street Overlay 
Project, adding additional street work and scope to the project. 
 
Attachments 
Change Order No. 2 
Map of S. Estate Dr. 



8/19/2021  5:22:27PM 

2021 Street Overlay Project Estates Dr

Cedar Park, TX 78613

1320 Arrow Point Drive, Suite 600

Texas Materials Group, Inc.

512-917-7205

brandon.lemay@texasmaterials.com

Telephone No:

EMail:

Addendum No:Contact: Brandon LeMay

Project: 2021 Belton Street Overlay Project

Location: Estates Dr

County: Bell

Bid Date: 8/19/2021

AMOUNTITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE

2" Full Mill and 2" Ty D Overlay w/Tack Estates Dr SY 5,320.00  51,338.00 9.65

Provide and Install 4" TY-1 Single Yellow Pavement LF 925.00  2,173.75 2.35

Provide TY II-B-B RPM EA 1.00  20.00 20.00

Provide and Install SLOW Thermo Marking EA 2.00  900.00 450.00

Provide and Install Asphalt Berm LF 330.00  2,524.50 7.65

GRAND TOTAL  56,956.25

NOTES: 

Terms are net 10th of the month. This quote is limited to acceptance within 30 days from the date of this quotation after which 

time quotation is subject to review and or revision. All courses preceding those to be paved by Texas Materials Group, Inc. 

(TMGI) shall meet or exceed the governing specifications and meet or exceed the ride specifications. TMGI is not responsible 

for horizontal and or vertical control and if longitudinal joint location is critical or desired, they shall be laid out by the general 

contractor prior to the placement of any courses. This quote will become part of the subcontract agreement and shall supersede 

any other conflicting language in the subcontract agreement.  

Prior to executed agreement our credit application must be completed and approved for the total subcontract value.   Additional 

terms of this quote are based upon: acceptable contract/subcontract language. 

The prime contractor and or owner shall provide adequate access to the work area for conventional hot mix paving equipment 

and trucks to pass adjacent to paving equipment for hot mix, seal coat and prime placement. Paved areas shall be machine 

placed and a minimum of 10' wide.

TMGI is not responsible for subsurface conditions.  TMGI will not accept the responsibility of any subsequent course the prime 

coat, hot mix, surface treatment, and or seal coat (pavement) are to be placed on prior to or after our work is completed that 

might cause the pavement to fail.

Prices on accepted quote are firm until December 31, 2021. After December 31, 2021, the above prices shall be escalated.

Due to the implications of COVID-19 on Texas Materials, performance may be delayed.  Texas Materials agrees to timely 

notify Contractor of COVID-19 related delays and when such delays have been rectified.

Estimate for TMGI to perform work on Estates Dr. It includes a full width 2.0" mill of Estates Dr and repave with Ty D HMAC 

w/RAP at 2.0". Install a solid yellow 4.0" line down the middle to seperate traffic. Install two Thermo words that read SLOW. 

Install the asphalt berm along the edge of the road for 330lf at 6.0" tall and 6.0" wide at the base.

Page 1 of 2



All work to be performed while currently on the 2021 Belton Street Overlay Project. 

Inclusions:

1. If a Payment and Performance Bond is required add 1.5% to the total bid.

2. Testing for HMAC QC production and placement and QA ride testing for item 585 when applicable for the HMAC TMGI 

places.

3. Unless the words "Lump Sum" appear next to a price for an item, all prices are per unit, and payments will be based upon the 

actual number of units performed.

4.  If work is to be performed after TMGI has moved away from the 2021 Belton Street Overlay project it will cost an additional 

mobilizations and that shall be at $5,500.00 each.

5. TMGI shall retain all production, ride and placement bonus/penalty on HMAC item(s) according to specification where 

applicable. The bonus/penalty calculations shall be based on TMGI's unit prices or the unit bid prices whichever is greater .

6. All work not covered by a specific pay item or stated subsidiary will be billed according to TXDOT's 2014 Standard 

Specifications Item 9.7 Force Account Work or an agreed upon unit price change order.

7. General contractor to provide onsite staging area convenient to TMGI's work for equipment, material storage, and equipment 

cleaning within the project limits.

8. Flexible pavement repair, ACP Drives & Detours include HMAC items only.

Exclusions:

1. State and local sales tax.

2. All bonds and association dues.

3. Traffic control, saw-cutting, butt joints, survey layout, layout of joints, and construction water .

4. Removal of TABS, buttons, existing pavement markings, etc.

5. TMGI excludes all penalties and damages assessed by Owner except as stated in inclusions note 5 above.

6. TMGI will not be responsible for lane rental costs, road user costs, etc.

7. Sweeping and or cleaning prior to TMGI's work.

8. Blotter material and placement.

9. Railroad protective insurance if applicable.

10. Item 351 & 508 excludes all removals.

11. Hand placed hot mix (Priced on Request).

12. Pavement Repairs less than 7' wide (Priced on Request).

13. Grass or vegetation removal.

14. Builders Risk Insurance.

NOTE:

All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work is to be completed in a work-manlike manner per standard practices. Any 

alteration or deviation from the above specifications involving extra costs will be executed only upon written change orders and 

will become an extra charge over and above this estimate.

Quote Accepted by:

Signed:        ___________________________________

Title: ___________________________________

Date: ___________________________________

Company: ___________________________________

Address:        ___________________________________

Telephone: ___________________________________

Page 2 of 2



 



City Council Agenda Item 
August 24, 2021 

Page 1 of 1   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 

 
Agenda Item #6 
 
Consider reappointments to the following Commissions: 
 

A. Police and Fire Civil Service Commission 
B. Historic Preservation Commission 

 
 
Originating Department: Administration – Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 
 
Background 

 
A. Jerry Samu’s term on the Civil Service Commission ends on September 24, 2021. He 

has expressed a desire to serve another term, and Mayor Carpenter is recommending 
him for reappointment. 

B. Barrett Covington and Ann Carpenter have terms on the Historic Preservation 
Commission that end on September 8, 2021. Both have expressed a desire to serve 
another term, and Mayor Carpenter is recommending both for reappointment. 

 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
N/A 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of the reappointments. 
 
 
Attachments 
 
None 



City Council Agenda Item 
August 24, 2021 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 

Agenda Item #7 
 

Consider appointments to the Youth Advisory Commission, administer oath of office to 
newly appointed members, and appoint a Chair. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Parks and Recreation – Matt Bates, Director 
 
Background 
 
In May 2007, the City Council authorized the formation of a Youth Advisory Commission 
(YAC), and the first one-year appointments were made in September 2007. The YAC is 
charged with: 
 

• Developing recommendations to the Council that focus on Belton’s quality of life, 
community facility and service enhancements, and other issues of importance to young 
people. 

• Making recommendations and advising the City Council concerning solutions to specific 
youth issues in the community. 

• Encouraging the initiation of programs of general interest to youth. 

• Enlisting the cooperation of all segments of the community in being more responsive to 
the youth community. 

• Making and issuing reports concerning its studies, research, examinations and other 
activities, and making annual reports to the City Council at such times as may be 
requested by the Council. 
 

For 2021-2022, we are proposing the following students be appointed to YAC: 
 

  Last Name First Name Male/Female Grade School Volunteer Hours 

1 Romer Emma Female 12th 
Belton 
H.S. 

27 

2 McAninch Katelyn Female 11th  Home 22.5 

3 McDonald Lauryn Female 12th 
Belton 
H.S. 

7 

4 Ryan Arianna Female 11th 
Belton 

New Tech 
8.5 

5 Ogden Emily Female 12th  
Belton 
H.S. 

19 



City Council Agenda Item 
August 24, 2021 

Page 2 of 2   
 

6 Kunz Christian  Male 11 
Lake 

Belton 
8 

7 Moore Chase Male 11 
Lake 

Belton 
8 

8 Constancio Oscar Male 10 
Belton 
H.S. 

10 

9 Ojha Shivangi Female 12 
Belton 

New Tech 
0 

 
The proposed chair, Emma Romer, did a fantastic job shadowing last year’s chair, and I am 
recommending she be appointed as the Chair of the 2021-2022 YAC. 

 
City Attorney John Messer will conduct the swearing-in of the 2021-2022 YAC members. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
YAC Budget for FY2022: $1,000 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of the appointments. 
 
Attachments 
 
None 



 

 
 

City Council Agenda Item 
August 24, 2021 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item                   
 
 

       Date:   August 24, 2021  
       Case No.:  Z-21-11 

Request:  A – SF-3 
Applicant/Owners:  Joe McNamara and Belton 

Engineering 
 
Agenda Item #8 
 
Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural (AG) to Single Family-3 
(SF-3) on approximately 12.035 acres located along an extension of Laila Lane, west of Connell 
Street, east of South Loop 121, south of West Avenue O, and north of Huey Drive. 
 
Originating Department:  Planning Department – Tina Moore - Planner 
 
Current Zoning:  Agricultural (A)      
 
Proposed Zoning: Single Family Residential - 3 
 
Proposed Use(s):  Single Family Detached Residential Homes 
 
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Designation:  Residential  
 
Design Standards Type Area 9:    
 
The desired growth in this area is a mixture of uses taking into consideration context and the 
Loop 121 corridor.  
 
Background/Case Summary 
 
This request is anticipated to be a continuation of the West Canyon Trails subdivision and will 
be developed with single family detached homes. The subdivision plat will be presented to the 
City Council at a future meeting.  
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
Existing Conditions:   

Direction Zoning  Use 

North Agricultural McNamara’s Auto Parts  

South Commercial - 2 BISD – Undeveloped Tract 

West SF-3 West Canyon Trails  

East SF-3 The Ridge at Belle Meadows 



 

 
 

City Council Agenda Item 
August 24, 2021 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Land Use Table/Allowable Uses: The requested SF-3 Zoning District would permit the uses 
as identified below: 

• Single Family detached dwellings  

• Municipally owned facilities and uses 
(no open storage or repairs) 

• Accessory building and uses (home 
occupation) customarily incidental to 
primary use 

• Telephone exchange 

• Sewerage Treatment Plant and 
pump station 

• Swimming pool 

• Accessory dwelling Unit

 
Area & Setback Requirements:  
 

 SF-3 

Minimum Lot area 5,000 

Lot width 50’ 

Lot Depth 90’ 

Minimum Front Yard Setback 25’ 

Minimum Side Yard Setback 5’/15’- adjacent to a street 

Minimum Rear Yard Setback 20’ 

Maximum Lot Coverage 45% 

 
The subject property is approximately 12 acres. A subdivision plat is required and will be 
reviewed for compliance with the minimum area requirements and setbacks. The proposed 
development will also include a segment of Laila Lane which will connect West Canyon Trails 
to The Ridge at Belle Meadows subdivision.  
   
 Future Land Use Map  
 
The Future Land Use Map (FLUM) identifies this area as projected for residential development. 
The request zoning appears to be compatible with the existing zoning, projected growth and 
appears reasonable at this location.  
 
Recommendation  
 
At its meeting on August 17, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously 
recommended approval of the requested zoning change from Agricultural to a Single Family-3 
Zoning District, and Staff concurs in that recommendation. 
 
Attachments 
Application and Conceptual Site Plan 
Property Location Map 
Zoning map 
Aerial photo 
Zoning notice to owners/Owner notification list/Map with zoning notice boundary (200’) 
P&Z Minutes Excerpt 
Ordinance

  



















1 

 

Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, August 17, 2021

 
The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center, 401 North Alexander 
Street. Commission members who were present: Chair Brett Baggerly, Vice Chair Dave Covington, Luke Potts, 
Joshua Knowles. Zach Krueger, Nicole Fischer, and Stephanie O’Banion. The following members were absent: 
David Jarratt and Quinton Locklin. The following staff members were present: City Manager Sam Listi, Director 
of Planning Bob van Til, Planner Tina Moore, Planning Clerk Laura Livingston and IT Specialist Alex Munger.  
 

5. Z-21-11 Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural (A) to Single Family-3 
(SF-3) Zoning District on approximately 12.035 acres located along an extension of Laila Lane, 
generally west of Connell Street, and east of South Loop 121, south of West Avenue O, north of Huey 
Drive. (Audio 2:32) 
 
Staff Planner Ms. Moore presented the staff report (Exhibit A).  
 
Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing. With no one requesting to speak, he closed the public hearing.  
 
Commission Member Dave Covington made a motion to approve item Z-21-11 as recommended by Staff. 
Commission Member Joshua Knowles seconded the motion. The motion was approved with 7 ayes, 0 nays. 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-18 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON BY 
CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM ARICULATRAL TO SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL - 3 DISTRICT ON APPROXIMATELY 12.035 ACRE TRACT TO BE 
REGULATED UNDER TYPE AREA 9 DESIGN STANDARDS. 
 

WHEREAS, Joe McNamara, the property owner, has presented a petition duly 
signed, to the City Planning & Zoning Commission and filed said petition with the City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, and due notice of filing of said petition and hearing on said petition has 
been given as required by the City Zoning Ordinance and by law, and a hearing on said 
petition before the City Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of Belton was set for the 
17th day of August, 2021, at 5:30 p.m. for hearing and adoption, said district being 
described as follows: 

 
12.035 Generally located west of Connell Street, east of South Loop 121, 
south of West Avenue O, north of Huey Drive, along a future extension of 

Laila Lane (location map attached as Exhibit “A”) 
 
WHEREAS, said application for such amendment was duly recommended by the 

said City Planning & Zoning Commission and the date, time, and place of the hearing on 
said application by the City Council of the City of Belton was set for the 24th day of August 
2021, at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center and due notice of said hearing was 
given as required by ordinances and by law; and 
 

WHEREAS, a hearing was held upon the application by the City Council of the City 
of Belton at the time, place and date herein before set forth and no valid objection to said 
amendments was presented. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Belton, 
Texas, that the said district located on a tract of land as more fully and completely 
described above, be and is hereby changed from Agricultural to Single Family Residential 
3, in accordance to Section 12, Single Family Residential 3 Zoning District, and the Design 
Standards in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance. The Zoning 
Ordinance of the City of Belton is hereby amended, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. The use of this property shall conform to the Single Family Residential - 3 Zoning 

District in all respects. 
  

2. The development of each property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 9 
Design Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, including: 

a. Site Development Standards  
b. Tree Protection, Preservation and Mitigation Standards.  

 
3. A Subdivision Plat is required.  



 
 

This ordinance was presented at the stated meeting of the City Council of the City of Belton 
and upon reading was passed and adopted by the City Council on the 24th day of August 
2021, by a vote of ______ ayes and ______ nays. 
 

SIGNED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk on this the 
24th day of August, 2021. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Wayne Carpenter, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



EXH
IB

IT "A
"



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
August 24, 2021 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item                   
 
       Date:   August 24, 2021  
       Case No.:  Z-21-012 

Request:  A – SF-3 
Applicant/Owners: Gilbert, James, and Paula 

Golden and Belton 
Engineering 

Agenda Item #9 
 
Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural (AG) to Single Family-3 
(SF-3) on approximately 55.997 acres located east of IH 35, north of loop 121, and south of 
Avenue R. 
  
Originating Department:  Planning Department – Tina Moore - Planner 
 
Current Zoning:  Agricultural (A)  Proposed Zoning: Single Family Residential - 3 
 
Proposed Use(s):  Single Family Detached Residential Homes  
 
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Designation:  Residential  
 
Design Standards Type Area 11: The desired growth in this area is a primarily a single family 
residential with opportunity for retail and commercial areas along Holland Road.  
 
Background/Case Summary 
 
The applicant is proposing to a zoning change to allow for a single family detached subdivision.  
The property is currently vacant. A subdivision plat will be presented to the commission at a 
later date.  
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
Existing Conditions:   
 
Direction Zoning  Use 
North SF-2 Single Family Detached 

Homes 
South SF-3 and A Single Family Detached 

Homes and Miller Heights 
Park 

West SF-2 Single Family Detached 
Homes 

East SF-3 Single Family Detached 
Homes 



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
August 24, 2021 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Land Use Table/Allowable Uses: The requested SF-3 Zoning District would permit the uses 
as identified below: 

• Single Family detached dwellings  
• Municipally owned facilities and uses 

(no open storage or repairs) 
• Accessory building and uses (home 

occupation) customarily incidental to 
primary use 

• Telephone exchange 
• Sewerage Treatment plant and 

pump station 
• Swimming pool 
• Accessory Dwelling Unit

 
Area & Setback Requirements:  
 
 SF-3 
Minimum Lot area 5,000 
Lot width 50’ 
Lot Depth 90’ 
Minimum Front Yard Setback 25’ 
Minimum Side Yard Setback 5’/15’- adjacent to a street 
Minimum Rear Yard Setback 20’ 
Maximum Lot Coverage 45% 

 
The subject property is approximately 56 acres, and the owner proposes a single family 
detached residential use.  The future plat will be reviewed for compliance with the minimum 
area requirements and setbacks. 
   
 Future Land Use Map  
 
The Future Land Use Map (FLUM) identifies this area as projected for high density residential 
development.  The request zoning appears to be compatible with the projected growth for this 
area and appropriate at this location.   
 
Recommendation  
 
At its meeting on August 17, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously 
recommended approval of the requested zoning change from Agricultural to a Single Family-3 
Zoning District, and Staff concurs in that recommendation. 
 
Attachments
Application and Conceptual Site Plan 
Property Location Map 
Zoning map 
Aerial photo 
Zoning notice to owners/Owner notification list/Map with zoning notice boundary (200’) 
P&Z Minutes Excerpt 
Ordinance 







































1 

 

Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, August 17, 2021

 
The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center, 401 North Alexander 
Street. Commission members who were present: Chair Brett Baggerly, Vice Chair Dave Covington, Luke Potts, 
Joshua Knowles. Zach Krueger, Nicole Fischer, and Stephanie O’Banion. The following members were absent: 
David Jarratt and Quinton Locklin. The following staff members were present: City Manager Sam Listi, Director 
of Planning Bob van Til, Planner Tina Moore, Planning Clerk Laura Livingston and IT Specialist Alex Munger.  
 

6. Z-21-12 Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural (A) to Single Family 3 
(SF-3) Zoning District on approximately 55.997 acres generally located east of I-35, north of Loop 121, 
south of Avenue R. (Audio 6:25) 

 
Commission Member Dave Covington recused himself from the item.  
 
Staff Planner Ms. Moore presented the staff report (Exhibit B).  
 
Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing. With no one requesting to speak, Chair Baggerly closed the public 
hearing.  
 
Commission Member Luke Potts asked if there were any plans for this area? Ms. Moore said nothing has 
been submitted yet for subdivision plat. There was a previous plan, the Charlie Miller Addition platted in the 
1950s, they are planning on replatting. The streets were previously abandoned by a separate instrument. 
Chair Baggerly said the map shows streets, but those streets are not there so we don’t know what the 
developer has planned for streets.   
 
Commission Member Luke Potts made a motion to approve item Z-21-09 as recommended by Staff. 
Commission Member Zach Krueger seconded the motion. The motion was approved with 6 ayes, 0 nays. 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-19 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON BY 
CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM ARICULATRAL TO SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL - 3 DISTRICT ON APPROXIMATELY 55.997 ACRE TRACT TO BE 
REGULATED UNDER TYPE AREA 11 DESIGN STANDARDS. 
 

WHEREAS, Gilbert, James and Paula Golden,  the property owners, has presented 
a petition duly signed, to the City Planning & Zoning Commission and filed said petition with 
the City Clerk of the City of Belton, and due notice of filing of said petition and hearing on 
said petition has been given as required by the City Zoning Ordinance and by law, and a 
hearing on said petition before the City Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of Belton 
was set for the 17th day of August, 2021, at 5:30 p.m. for hearing and adoption, said district 
being described as follows: 
 

generally located east of I-35, north of Loop 121, south of Avenue R 
 (location map attached as Exhibit “A”) 

 
WHEREAS, said application for such amendment was duly recommended by the 

said City Planning & Zoning Commission and the date, time, and place of the hearing on 
said application by the City Council of the City of Belton was set for the 24th day of August 
2021, at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center and due notice of said hearing was 
given as required by ordinances and by law; and 
 

WHEREAS, a hearing was held upon the application by the City Council of the City 
of Belton at the time, place and date herein before set forth and no valid objection to said 
amendments was presented. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Belton, 
Texas, that the said district located on a tract of land as more fully and completely 
described above, be and is hereby changed from Agricultural to Single Family Residential 
3, in accordance to Section 12, Single Family Residential 3 District, and the Design 
Standards in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance. The Zoning 
Ordinance of the City of Belton is hereby amended, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. The use of this property shall conform to the Single Family Residential - 3 Zoning 

District in all respects. 
  

2. The development of each property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 11 
Design Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, including: 
 

a. Site Development Standards  
b. Tree Protection, Preservation and Mitigation Standards.  

 
3. A Subdivision Plat is required.  



 
 

This ordinance was presented at the stated meeting of the City Council of the City of Belton 
and upon reading was passed and adopted by the City Council on the 24th day of August 
2021, by a vote of ______ ayes and ______ nays. 
 

SIGNED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk on this the 
24th day of August, 2021. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Wayne Carpenter, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



EX
H

IBIT "A
"



 

 
 

City Council Agenda Item 
August 24, 2021 

Page 1 of 4   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item                   
 

       Date:   August 24, 2021  
       Case No.:  Z-21-13 

Request:  A – C-2, C-1, R, SF-3 
Applicant/Owners: Joe Richards and Randolph 

Texas Development, LLC. 
 
Agenda Item #10 
 
Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural (AG) to Single Family-3 
(SF-3), Retail (R), Commercial-1 (C-1) and Commercial-2 (C-2) on approximately 53.04 acres 
located south of IH-14, west of S. Loop 121 and east of Old Golf Course Road.  
  
Originating Department:  Planning Department – Tina Moore - Planner 
 
Current Zoning:  Agricultural (A)     
 
Proposed Zoning: 
  
Tract 1 - Commercial – 2 (C-2), 3.53 Acres  
Tract 2 - Commercial – 1 (C-1), 3.37 Acres 
Tract 3 - Retail (R), 1.09 Acres 
Tract 4 - Single Family Residential - 3 (SF-3), 45.05 Acres 
 
Proposed Use(s):  Commercial and Single Family Detached Residential Homes  
 
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Designation:  Commercial  
 
Design Standards Type Area 9:    
 
The desired growth in this area is a mixture of uses taking into consideration context and the 
Loop 121 corridor.  
 
Background/Case Summary 
 
This project proposes a mixed-use development with commercial and retail fronting Loop 121 
and single family detached homes on the remainder of the tract. This property currently has 
one single family home and a warehouse. The home will be converted to an amenity center 
for the future residential subdivision. The warehouse will be removed. The subdivision plat 
will be provided to the commission at a later date.  
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
Existing Conditions:   



 

 
 

City Council Agenda Item 
August 24, 2021 

Page 2 of 4   
 

 

Direction Zoning  Use 

North PD- C-1 Mixed Use and 
Mobile Home Park 

Arbor Park Court Business 
Park and Hilltop Mobile 
Home Park 

South A Single Family Detached 
Development and 
Undeveloped Land  

West ETJ – No zoning Undeveloped Land 

East A and O-2 w/ SUP Undeveloped Land and Bail 
Bond Office 

 
Land Use Table/Allowable Uses:  
 
The requested C-2 Zoning District would permit the following uses: 
 

• Any use permitted in the C-1, Retail, 
NS or Office Districts 

• Restaurant; alcoholic beverages for 
on-premise consumption associated 
with food sales. 

• Commercial amusement (indoor or 
outdoor) 

• Auto sales new or used; auto 
servicing/repair; body repair and 
painting 

• Motorcycle and off road vehicle sales, 
servicing, and repair 

• Hotel/motel; hospital or nursing home; 
funeral home 

• Auto parking lot or garage 

• Boat sales 

• Car wash 

• Furniture manufacture/upholstery, 
carpentry, cabinet, painting, plumbing, 
welding shops 

• Commercial and wholesale dry 
cleaning 

• Flea market (indoor) 

• Equipment, tractor, trailer and truck 
sales and rental 

• Lumber yard; home improvement 
center; nursery and plant sales 
(outdoor storage) 

• Manufactured or mobile home sales; 
portable building sales 

• Veterinarian with outside kennels 

• Mini storage warehouses 

• Open or outside storage uses—must 
be screened 

 
The requested C-1 Zoning District would permit the following uses: 
 

• Any use allowed in the Retail District 

• Auto parts sales (new) with outside 
display 

• Auto servicing and repair (minor) 

• Auto sales (primarily new) 

• Boarding or rooming house 

• Boat Sales 

• Commercial Amusement (indoor) 

• Car Wash 

• Dance Studio 

• Draperies and furniture upholstering 

• Equipment sales (primarily new) 

• Food Sales – restaurant with primarily 
drive in customers for consumption in 
vehicles 

• Funeral services 

• Furniture  



 

 
 

City Council Agenda Item 
August 24, 2021 

Page 3 of 4   
 

• Home Improvement center w/outside 
storage 

• Hotel/motel 

• Manufactured or mobile home sales 

• Motorcycle sales/repair 

• Off-Road vehicle sales/service and 
repairs 

• Office, showroom 

• Pawn shop 

• Pet Shop 

• Tire dealership 

• Tractor sales (primarily new) 

• No outside storage is permitted 

 
The requested R Zoning District would permit the following uses: 
 

• Any use permitted in the NS or Office 
Districts 

• All alcoholic beverage sales with 50% 
or less revenue from alcohol 

• Auto Parts Sales 

• Clinic 

• Convenience Store with Gas Pumps; 
Gasoline or Service Station 

• Discount, Variety or Department Store 

• Food or Grocery Store 

• Furniture and Appliance Store 

• Home Improvement Center 

• Laboratory 

• Nursing Home 

• Restaurant 

• Shopping Center and other Retail 
Uses; Bakery; Clothing and Apparel 
Store; Fabric Store; Key Shop; Kiosk; 
Pet Shop; Sporting Goods Store 

• Telephone or Utility Business Office 

• Wholesale Clubs or Department 
Stores – no outside storage 

  
The requested SF-3 Zoning District would permit the following uses: 
 

• Single Family detached dwellings  

• Municipally owned facilities and 
uses (no open storage or repairs) 

• Accessory building and uses (home 
occupation) customarily incidental to 
primary use 
 

• Telephone exchange 

• Sewerage Treatment plant and 
pump station 

• Swimming pool 

• Accessory Dwelling Unit 

Area & Setback Requirements:  

 C-2 C-1 R SF-3 

Minimum Lot area 5,000 7,200 7,000 5,000 

Lot width 50’ 60’ 60’ 50’ 

Lot Depth 100’ 100’ N/A 90’ 

Minimum Front 
Yard Setback 

20’ 25’ 25’ 25’ 

Minimum Side Yard 
Setback 

15’/20’- adjacent to 
a street 

25’/30’ 25’ 5’/15’ 

Minimum Rear 
Yard Setback 

15’ 20’ 20’ 20’ 

Maximum Lot 
Coverage 

50% 40% 40% 45% 

Maximum Height 2.5 stories 2.5 Stories 2 stories (40”) 2.5 stories 



 

 
 

City Council Agenda Item 
August 24, 2021 

Page 4 of 4   
 

The subject property is approximately 53 acres and will be subdivided in the future to allow 
for the proposed uses. The acreage provided exceeds the minimum requirements in each of 
the proposed zoning districts. The future plat and development plans will be reviewed for 
compliance with the City’s Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances and Design Standards. 
Access to the site will be reviewed by TxDOT and staff for compliance with applicable 
standards. The area indicated for parkland will be reviewed for suitability for public parks and 
recreational standards.  
   
 Future Land Use Map  
 
The Future Land Use Map (FLUM) identifies this area as commercial with a commercial 
corridor overlay. Medium to high density residential development are encouraged in 
commercial corridors, particularly as a part of a mixed-use development. Screening and other 
appropriate mitigation will be required between the commercial and residential uses. The 
requested zoning appears to be compatible with the projected growth and nearby uses in this 
area.  
 
Recommendation  
 
At its meeting on August 17, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously 
recommended approval of the requested zoning change from Agricultural to Commercial-2, 
Commercial-1, Retail, and Single Family-3 Zoning Districts, and Staff concurs with the 
recommendation.  
 
Attachments
Application and Conceptual Site Plan 
Property Location Map 
Zoning map 
Aerial photo 
Zoning notice to owners/Owner notification list/Map with zoning notice boundary (200’) 
P&Z Minutes Excerpt 
Ordinance 

  























1 

 

Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, August 17, 2021

 
The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center, 401 North Alexander 
Street. Commission members who were present: Chair Brett Baggerly, Vice Chair Dave Covington, Luke Potts, 
Joshua Knowles. Zach Krueger, Nicole Fischer, and Stephanie O’Banion. The following members were absent: 
David Jarratt and Quinton Locklin. The following staff members were present: City Manager Sam Listi, Director 
of Planning Bob van Til, Planner Tina Moore, Planning Clerk Laura Livingston and IT Specialist Alex Munger.  
 

7. Z-21-13 Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural to 
Commercial-2, Commercial-1, Retail, and Single Family-3 Zoning Districts on approximately 
53.04 acres generally located south of I-14 and west of South Loop 121. (Audio 11:41) 

 
Staff Planner Ms. Moore presented the staff report (Exhibit C).  
 
Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing. With no one requesting to speak, Chair Baggerly closed the public 
hearing.  
 
Commission Member Stephanie O’Banion said it looks like a great use of the property. Commission Member 
Dave Covington asked about the portion of SF-3 that backs up to Loop 121 in terms of the FLUM, was the 
intention always to have single family homes in that area. The applicant, Mr. Gary Jones, said their initial 
plan was to zone it as single family. The property has a lot of topography and so this is a challenge of the 
property to add more commercial property. He said he promised Ms. Moore that on tract 1 that he would 
bring in a Chick Fil-A. The market right now is calling for single-family but they do want to reserve part of the 
acreage for commercial use.  
 
Commission Member Dave Covington asked the depth of the lots that are on Loop 121. Mr. Jones said they 
don’t want anything less than 115 feet. He said he would prefer to see more retail/commercial in that area, 
but he will still vote in favor.  
 
Commission Member Luke Potts asked why the zoning choices? Mr. Jones said that seemed to make most 
sense and gives the most options and present the best opportunity for the market.  
 
Commission Member Stephanie O’Banion made a motion to approve item Z-21-13 as recommended by 
Staff. Commission Member Luke Potts seconded the motion. The motion was approved with 7 ayes, 0 nays.  

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-20 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON BY 
CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM AGRICULTURAL TO COMMERCIAL-2, 
COMMERCIAL-1, RETAIL, AND SINGLE FAMILY-3 ZONING DISTRICTS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 53.04 ACRES GENERALLY LOCATED SOUTH OF I-14 AND WEST 
OF SOUTH LOOP 121 AND EAST OF OLD GOLF COURSE ROAD WITH 
DEVELOPMENT TO BE REGULATED UNDER TYPE AREA 9 DESIGN STANDARDS. 
 

WHEREAS, Randolph Texas Development, a prospective  buyer, has presented a 
petition duly signed, to the City Planning & Zoning Commission and filed said petition with 
the City Clerk of the City of Belton, and due notice of filing of said petition and hearing on 
said petition has been given as required by the City Zoning Ordinance and by law, and a 
hearing on said petition before the City Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of Belton 
was set for the 17th day of August, 2021, at 5:30 p.m. for hearing and adoption, said district 
being described as follows: 

 
53.04 Acres Generally Located South of I-14,  

West of South Loop 121, and East of Old Golf Course Road  
(location map attached as Exhibit “A”) 

 
WHEREAS, said application for such amendment was duly recommended by the 

said City Planning & Zoning Commission and the date, time, and place of the hearing on 
said application by the City Council of the City of Belton was set for the 24th day of August 
2021, at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center and due notice of said hearing was 
given as required by ordinances and by law; and 
 

WHEREAS, a hearing was held upon the application by the City Council of the City 
of Belton at the time, place and date herein before set forth and no valid objection to said 
amendments was presented. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Belton, 
Texas, that the said district located on a tract of land as more fully and completely 
described above, be and is hereby changed from Agricultural to Commercial-2,  Comercial-
1, Retail, and Single Family-3 Zoning Districts, in accordance to Section 12, Single Family 
Residential District – 3, Section 21, Retail District, Section 24, Commercial -1 District,  
Section 25, Commercial- 2 District, and the Design Standards in Ordinance 2014-17, 
Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance. The Zoning Ordinance of the City of Belton is hereby 
amended subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. The use of Tract 1 shall conform to the Commercial-2 Zoning District in all aspects. 
2. The use of Tract 2 shall conform to the Commerical-1 Zoning District in all aspects.  
3. The use of Tract 3 shall conform to the Retail Zoning District in all aspects.  
4. The use of Tract 4 shall conform to the Single Family Residential – 3 Zoning District 

in all aspects 



5. The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 9 Design 
Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, including: 

a. Site Development Standards 
b. Landscape Design Standards 
c. Tree Protection, Preservation, and Mitigation Standards.  

6. A Subdivision Plat is required.  
 

This ordinance was presented at the stated meeting of the City Council of the City of Belton 
and upon reading was passed and adopted by the City Council on the 24th day of August 
2021, by a vote of ______ ayes and ______ nays. 
 

SIGNED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk on this the 
24th day of August 2021. 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Wayne Carpenter, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



EXH
IB

IT "A
"



 




